
TOWN OF DAVIE 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

MAY 14, 2014 
 
1. ROLL CALL  
 The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.  Board members present were Chair Ken 
DeArmas, Vice Chair Todd Evans, Tom Jacob, and Christopher Cory.  Jodi Davidson was 
absent.  Also present were Daniel Stallone, Esquire, Assistant Town Attorney; Planning and 
Zoning Manager David Quigley; David Stallworth, Planner II; and Brigitte Chiappetta/Prototype 
Inc. recording the meeting.   
 
2.        MOTION TO EXCUSE COMMITTEE MEMBERS  
 
 Motion made by Mr. Cory, seconded by Vice Chair Evans, to excuse the absence of Ms. 
Davidson.  In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.        APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 3.1   April 23, 2014 
 
 Motion made by Vice Chair Evans, seconded by Mr. Cory, to approve the minutes of the 
April 23, 2014, meeting.  In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
4.       PUBLIC HEARING (Quasi-Judicial) 
 Mr. Stallone announced that all the applicants waived the quasi-judicial process. 
 

4.1 Plat (P) 12-239 Parkway Christian 
       1200 South Flamingo Road 
 
4.2  Rezoning (ZB) 12-276 Parkway Christian 
       1200 South Flamingo Road 

 Mr. Quigley provided the staff report, noting that the original application requested 
adding 50,000 square feet as a middle school.  Other documents show the proposal to be 85,000 
square feet of new building plus 2,166 square feet of existing residential.  Mr. Quigley expressed 
concern that it was that the 85,000 square feet was non-specific as to use. 
 Regarding Item #4.2, Mr. Quigley explained they wish to rezone for community facilities 
to allow school expansion.  Mr. Quigley reviewed the key points of the rezoning.   
 Mr. Quigley stated that the southwest parcel is approved for commercial, but has not 
come forward for development.  Staff believes it is a compatible use. 
 Suellen H. Fardelmann, 5100 Southwest 89 Terrace, Cooper City, Florida, representing 
the owner, provided a history of the property, noting the parcel is large enough for accommodate 
future growth.  She summarized the information submitted to the Town in their application for 
rezoning and proposed site planning.   
 Xavier Aguirre noted he is the surveyor and mapper of record for this project and the 
agent.  He stated that the existing residence is a duplex.  Arnold Ramos, 5681 Southwest 9 
Street, Plantation, Florida, discussed the building.  He relayed that the Associate Minister for 
Youth occupies the three-bedroom, two-bath side; the one-bedroom side is being used by the 
church youth.  Mr. Ramos said it was built approximately 10-12 years ago. 

Chair DeArmas then opened and closed public comment as there was no one wishing to 
speak on this item. 

1 



TOWN OF DAVIE 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

MAY 14, 2014 
 

Mr. Jacob established that no one showed up for the public participation meeting.  Ms. 
Fardelmann stated that one person in the neighborhood has expressed enthusiasm in the project 
and is an unofficial liaison with the neighborhood behind the property. 

In response to a question about the existing building, Mr. Quigley advised that whatever 
site plan is submitted will have to comply with new regulations regarding Community Facilities 
setbacks and use requirements.  The list of accessory uses for schools does not include 
residential.  Mr. Quigley clarified that the Board merely has to make sure that what they are 
asking for at this meeting is not inconsistent with the zoning code.   

Mr. Quigley also pointed out that on p. 11 of 13 in the packet there was a description of 
the proposed plat and read it for the record:  “This plat is restricted to 85,000 square feet of new 
building construction and 2,166 square feet of existing residential construction.”  He clarified 
that it is higher than what was originally asked for, but the Town must decide if it is reasonable 
to develop that much on the site without negative impact.  (Staff felt it was reasonable.)   Mr. 
Quigley stated it is consistent with a CF designation. 

Motion made by Mr. Jacob, seconded by Vice Chair Evans, that the plat is restricted to 
85,000 square feet of new building construction and 2,166 square feet of existing residential 
building construction.  In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

Motion made by Mr. Jacob, seconded by Mr. Cory, to approve rezoning. In a voice vote, 
the motion passed unanimously. 

 
           4.3  Rezoning (ZB) 13-297 Flamingo Village  
      820 South Flamingo Road 
 Mr. Stallone stated that the applicant waived the quasi-judicial hearing. 
 Mr. Quigley presented the case, which is to finish out unfinished buildings and build a 
similar type of townhouse project in two phases.  He pointed out that the existing entrance on the 
north would be eliminated as part of Phase 2; the final entrance would be done to the south, and 
it would be gated; on the west side (121 Avenue) there would be no vehicular access - only two 
emergency only gated access points which would be operable by emergency personnel. 
 Steven Wherry, 101 West Cypress Creek Road, on behalf of Lennar Homes and White 
Leaf Development, explained the rezoning request from AG to RM5 (five dwelling units per 
acre).  Mr. Wherry mentioned that their site plan application was approved by the Site Plan 
Committee with minor conditions; they also have two delegation requests as noted in the 
Planning Report.  He explained that the request would allow them to develop the southern and 
northern parcels in a single unified site plan to build 78 townhome residential units.  Mr. Wherry 
described the current situation onsite.  He said they concur fully with the staff report as it appears 
in the packet. 
 Mr. Jacob wondered if the neighbors were concerned with the development, and Mr. 
Wherry replied they have discussed the buffering of the non-included parcel with the rest of the 
site.  Staff has proposed a six-foot shadow-box fence to surround the property; the neighbor has 
requested a six-foot concrete wall.  Mr. Wherry added they are proposing trees for the buffer 
area. 
 Mr. Wherry said they had their first public participation meeting on January 9, and the 
second on January 16, 2014.    
 Discussion ensued about the neighboring property, when it was purchased and the 
sequence of purchases and notices.   

2 



TOWN OF DAVIE 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

MAY 14, 2014 
 
 There was a discussion regarding the six-foot wall, with Mr. Quigley remarking that such 
a wall requires a three-foot foundation which impedes landscaping.  He also thought it was not a 
good compromise for a rural/urban feel.  Mr. Quigley pointed out that the Site Plan Committee 
agreed to the six-foot wooden fence. 

Chair DeArmas then opened the floor to public comment on this item. 
Mr. Stallone swore in the first speaker:  Bruce Novak, 4262 Southwest 78 Drive, Davie.  

Mr. Novak spoke in favor of keeping the open spaces in Davie, not increasing the density.  He 
felt the six-foot fence was “imprisoning” rather than rural.  Mr. Novak also stated there would be 
increased traffic, and the road would have to be widened.  He said, “Davie is fading away.” 

Chair DeArmas stated that even though this Board is protective of the rural lifestyle and 
equestrian issues, Davie is growing; certain areas will expand, and services will have to increase 
due to more people.   

Mr. Stallone then swore in the rest of the public who wished to speak. 
Mr. Quigley announced he had made copies of the public participation report for the 

Board and some for the audience (the report was inadvertently omitted from the rezoning 
application). 

Gail Johnson, 812 Southwest 119 Way, Davie, pointed out her house on the map, and 
verified that only emergency vehicles would be allowed on the road near her property.  Ms. 
Johnson said she would not to like to see more houses, but it was “not her choice.” 

Hance Adams, 951 Southwest 121 Avenue, Davie, said his property is encircled by the 
subject property.  Mr. Adams felt he was misled by the site manager, who told him a wall would 
be built, but later said something different.  He said a three-foot wall (on the north) would have 
no continuity with a six-foot fence.  Mr. Adams stated that they want the concrete fence; 
however, if they do not have that, they want something durable for the long term.  Mr. Adams 
said that when he bought his property there was “jungle” all around it, and he was not aware of 
any impending development.  Regarding the fence, he thought a wooden fence could be kicked 
in. 

Chair DeArmas said he knew the area well, and also that a six-foot shadow box fence has 
to withstand hurricane-force winds in the area.  He described the structure of the fence. 

Mr. Adams spoke about the shadow box fence on his mother’s property, which is a high-
maintenance item.  He does not want that on his property. 

Mr. Quigley said that the zoning and site plan considerations can be sorted out at the 
Town Council meeting. 

Kelly Adams, 951 Southwest 121 Avenue, Davie, mentioned she did not want to be 
surrounded by townhouses.  She was concerned about property value and the impact of the 
development on the existing school zones.   Ms. Adams asserted they should have been invited to 
the Site Plan Committee meeting.   Mr. Quigley clarified that rezoning involves a public hearing, 
but site plan applications have public participation at the beginning.  Ms. Adams reiterated the 
need for security for their children and privacy on their property. 

Mr. Wherry said the floor plans are slightly different from the ones originally built there, 
but they are all two story.  He commented that the buffer is on the applicant’s property, and there 
will be an association established for maintenance of all common areas, to include the shadow- 
box fence.   

Jeff Alexander, 730 Northwest 107 Avenue, Miami, spoke on behalf of the applicant 
regarding the trees.  The added trees are approximately 12 to 14 feet and will be staggered to 
provide a full canopy.   

3 



TOWN OF DAVIE 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

MAY 14, 2014 
 

Mr. Alexander stated that the back yard behind the building is about 10 feet.  Beyond 
that, the retention area is about 20-25 feet.   

Mr. Evans was curious about the entrance to the community, and Mr. Alexander said they 
will use the one already there.  As the southern section is developed, they will create a new 
entrance.  No traffic studies were required since the north section was already vested with a plat. 

Chair DeArmas then closed the floor to public comment on this item, and thanked all 
who participated.  He described how the Board members are selected and the role of the Board.   

Chair DeArmas spoke about the effects of progress on the community, especially on the 
east side.  He also addressed Mr. Adams’ concerns about the shadow-box fence and his privacy. 

Mr. Jacob spoke in favor of the project, while Mr. Evans said he was opposed. 
 Motion made by Mr. Jacob, seconded by Mr. Cody to approve.  In a voice vote, the 
motion carried (3-1) as follows:  Chair DeArmas - yes; Vice Chair Evans - no; Mr. Cory - yes; 
Mr. Jacob - yes.  Ms. Davidson was absent. 
 
 4.4  Variance (V) 14-076 Perrino  
                   10851 SW 29 Place 
 Mr. Quigley provided the staff report on the item.  The request is to allow a five-foot high 
fence on three sides of the lot, where the Rural Lifestyle Regulations allow a four-foot fence 
within the front setback.  There are letters of no objection from the adjacent property owners. 
 Nicole Perrino, 10851 Southwest 29 Place, Davie, stated they want the variance for 
privacy reasons since they have had property stolen from them and security breaches.  They also 
have dogs they would like to keep in the yard.  Mary Lynn Perrino, 10851 Southwest 29 Place, 
said they are actually replacing a fence that was mostly destroyed in Hurricane Wilma.  It will be 
a chain link fence that goes around the house on the original fence line.  The original fence was a 
five-foot wooden fence with chicken wire.  Ms. Perrino described how the fence will go around 
the back of the property.   
 Mr. Quigley said there is nothing about the property that is so peculiar that they cannot 
comply with the normal code - it is just a preference on their part.  He clarified that this house is 
a corner house, and the front is the south side (on 29 Place).  There was a brief discussion about 
the fence and the front yard requirement.  The four-foot requirement applies to both streets, 
Southwest 29 Place and Southwest 108 Way.   
 A discussion ensued about the changing requirements for fencing a swimming pool. 
 Motion made by Mr. Jacob, seconded by Mr. Cory, to approve.  In a vote by roll call, the 
motion carried (4-0) as follows:  Chair DeArmas - yes; Vice Chair Evans - yes; Mr. Cory - yes; 
Mr. Jacob - yes.  Ms. Davidson was absent. 
 
5.  OLD BUSINESS - None 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS - None 
 
7. COMMENTS AND/OR SUGGESTIONS 
 Board members mentioned that they discuss variances on a case-by-case basis, and they 
are not anti-development. 
 
 
 

4 




